
 
 

1 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 
Agenda Item V (A) Agenda  

 

March 28, 2024 

32-33 

 

  March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 



 
 

2 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 
Agenda Item V (A) Agenda  

 

March 28, 2024 

Agenda 

One Maritime Plaza, 2nd Floor, Classrooms A & B 

Thursday, March 28, 2024, at 8:00 a.m. 

I. Call to Order Page No. 

II. Roll Call  

III. Public Comment Period  

IV. Report and Communications from the Chair: Robin Whitney  

 A. Presentation by Lynn Ackerson, Environmental Specialist at the Ohio 

Environmental Protection Agency (OEPA) 

 

V. Report of the President and CEO: Thomas J. Winston  

VI. Consent Agenda  

 A. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes: January 25, 2024 4-8 

 B. Final Expenditures through December 2023 9-16 

 C. Operating Results through February 2024 17-27 

 D. Consider Transfer of Funds for 2023 Operating Budget 28-30 

 E. Financing Programs Dashboard 31 

 F. BetterBuildings Northwest Ohio Dashboard 32 

 G. Northwest Ohio Bond Fund Trustee Report 33 

 H. Eugene F. Kranz Toledo Express Airport Statistics 34 

 I. Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Plaza Passenger Statistics 35 

 J. Diversified Contractors Accelerator Program Report 36 

VII. Recommendations and Reports from Standing Committees   

 A. Finance & Development Committee: John Szuch, chair  

  1. Consider Grant Agreement with U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency Great Lakes National Program Office for Remedial Design 
of Contaminated Sediment Removal at Two Lower Maumee River 
Sites within the Maumee River Area of Concern   
 

37-39 

  a. Exhibits A-C 
 
 

40-42 



 
 

3 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 
Agenda Item V (A) Agenda  

 

March 28, 2024 

  2. Consider Inducement of Not to Exceed $25,000,000 of Revenue 
Obligations to Fund the Acquisition, Construction, Rehabilitation, 
Installation and Equipping of a Residential Apartment Project to be 
Leased to Thurgood Marshall Senior Housing, LLC (or an Affiliate 
or Subsidiary Thereof) 

43-46 

  3. Consider Issuance of Revenue Bonds to Finance the Costs of 

Acquiring, Constructing, Developing, Equipping, Improving, and 

Installing Port Authority Facilities in Support of Principle Industries, 

Inc. ($8,000,000) 

47-60 

 B. Planning & Operations Committee: Kimberly Cutcher, chair  

  1. Consider Airport Joint Use Agreement with the State of Ohio and 
the United States of America 
 

61-62 

  2. Consider Hangar Facility Improvements at Eugene F. Kranz 
Toledo Express Airport (Toledo Jet Center) 
 

63-65 

 C. Government, Community & Human Relations Committee: Suzette 
Cowell, chair  
 

 

  1. Consider Community Economic Development Initiative Grant for The 
Salvation Army  

66-67 

  a. Exhibit D 68-72 

  2. Consider Community Economic Development Initiative Grant for 
Beach House 

73-74 

  a. Exhibit E 75-78 

VIII. 

IX. 

Other Business 

Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 



  

4 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

March 28, 2024 

Agenda Item VI (A) 
 

Meeting Minutes of the Board of Directors  

Thursday, January 25, 2024 
 

 

ROLL CALL 
  

The first meeting in 2024 of the Toledo-Lucas County Port Authority Board of Directors 
was called to order at 8:01 a.m. on Thursday, January 25, 2024, at One Maritime Plaza, Toledo, 
Ohio. 

 
Attendance was taken by roll call. The following members were present: Chair Robin 

Whitney, Vice Chair Christine Castellano, Wayne Blanchard, William Carroll (remotely), Suzette 
Cowell, David Fleetwood, Amy Hall, Joshua Hughes, and Nadeem Salem (remotely).  

 
The following members were absent: Directors Kimberly Cutcher, Jonathan Lyons, Sharon 

Speyer, and John Szuch.  
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
 Chair Whitney invited comments from the public. Hearing none, she proceeded with the 
order of business. 
 
REPORT AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CHAIR: ROBIN WHITNEY 
 

A. Recognition of Immediate Past Chair David Fleetwood 
 
Chair Whitney formally recognized Director Fleetwood for his years of service and support 
during his chair- and vice-chairmanship, throughout which the Port Authority realized 
many successes. Chair Whitney thanked Director Fleetwood for his leadership on the 
Board of Directors and in the community. 
 

Director Speyer joined the meeting in progress. 
 
REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT AND CEO: THOMAS J. WINSTON 
 

Mr. Winston thanked Director Fleetwood for his leadership as  
chair and vice chair of the Board of Directors and for putting the Port Authority first.  Mr. Winston 
is looking forward to working with the newly appointed chair, Director Whitney, and vice chair, 
Director Castellano and expressed his agreement with Chair Whitney’s comment to “continue the 
momentum,” noting that the Port Authority will continue to leverage its expertise to move the 
community forward. 
 

Mr. Winston highlighted the groundbreaking of the Clark and Delaware/Horseshoe Islands 
Restoration Project, noting its significance for the State of Ohio; the Port Authority is proud to be 
leading the effort to ensure its completion.  

 



  

5 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

March 28, 2024 

Agenda Item VI (A) 
 

Mr. Winston referred to his report regarding acquisition of goods, equipment, materiel and 
services for the quarter ending December 31, 2023, and asked for questions. Hearing none, Mr. 
Winston concluded his report. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA  

 
Chair Whitney presented the following Consent Agenda, copies having been distributed 

in advance to all directors, and asked if there were any comments or questions. Hearing none, 
upon a motion made by Director Fleetwood to adopt the Consent Agenda and seconded by 
Director Hall, a roll call vote was taken with the following responses: Whitney-yes, Castellano-
yes, Blanchard-yes, Carroll-yes, Cowell-yes, Fleetwood-yes, Hall-yes, Hughes-yes, Salem-yes, 
and Speyer-yes, thus, the Consent Agenda was unanimously adopted as submitted: 
 

A. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes: December 14, 2023 Motion 

B. Operating Results through December 2023  

C. Financing Programs Dashboard  

D. BetterBuildings Northwest Ohio Dashboard  

E. Northwest Ohio Bond Fund Trustee Report  

F. Eugene F. Kranz Toledo Express  Airport Statistics  

G. Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Plaza Passenger Statistics  

H. Seaport Statistics  

I. Diversified Contractors Accelerator Program Report  

RECOMMENDATIONS AND REPORTS FROM STANDING COMMITTEES 
 
FINANCE & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Director Salem, Vice Chair of the Finance & Development Committee, referred to the 
current Operating Results and dashboards, calling for questions. Hearing none, he proceeded to 
the next item of business. 
 

A. Consider Maritime Assistance Program Grant Agreement with Ohio Department of 
Transportation 

 
Director Salem recalled that the Maritime Assistance Program (the “MAP”) was created 
by the State of Ohio to assist port authorities with infrastructure needs. He reported that 
the Port Authority received notification from the Ohio Department of Transportation (the 
“ODOT”) that its grant application for resilient cargo storage warehouse facilities project 
has been awarded in the amount of $4,692,393. The MAP grant requires a fifty percent 
(50%) match that would be met by the Port Authority through a future appropriation and/or 
Midwest Terminals, and possibly other sources including federal grant funding. 
 



  

6 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

March 28, 2024 

Agenda Item VI (A) 
 

Director Salem reported that the Finance & Development Committee recommends 
adoption of a resolution authorizing the President to accept the grant funds awarded from 
the MAP and to enter into all agreements necessary and to execute any agreements with 
the ODOT that may be required for the Port Authority to administer the Resilient Cargo 
Storage Warehouse Facilities Project.  
 
Following discussion, upon the motion of Director Carroll, seconded by Director 
Fleetwood, a roll call vote was taken with the following responses: Whitney-yes, 
Castellano-yes, Blanchard-yes, Carroll-yes, Cowell-yes, Fleetwood-yes, Hall-yes, 
Hughes-yes, Salem-yes, and Speyer-yes, thus, 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1-24 

 

AUTHORIZING MARITIME ASSISTANCE PROGRAM GRANT  

AGREEMENT WITH OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 
was unanimously adopted. The resolution in its full text is incorporated in the Resolutions 
Journal of the Port Authority. 

 
PLANNING & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE  
 

A. Consider Acceptance of Grant Funds and Appropriation for Demolition and Site 
Cleanup at 1102 W. Central Avenue 

 
Director Carroll, Chair of the Planning & Operations Committee, recalled that the Port 
Authority purchased the property at 1102 W. Central Avenue due to the property being 
connected to Overland Industrial Park, noting that the building was constructed in 1928 
and used as a plating facility until the operation relocated in 1997. He reported that the 
environmental remediation is complete with the asbestos building materials and other 
chemicals previously used in the plating process removed. The Lucas County Landbank 
has offered a matching grant of up to up to $50,000 for the demolition of the property. The 
total cost of the project is estimated to be $275,000, with the remaining funds to be paid 
by the Port Authority. 
 
Director Carroll reported that the Planning & Operations Committee recommends adoption 
of a resolution authorizing the President to accept funding from the Lucas County 
Landbank for this project and to enter into agreements necessary for its completion, and 
to appropriate $275,000 from Port Authority Reserves, which would be partially 
reimbursed from the grant funds.  

 

Following discussion, upon the motion of Director Blanchard, seconded by Director 
Fleetwood, a roll call vote was taken with the following responses: Whitney-yes, 
Castellano-yes, Blanchard-yes, Carroll-yes, Cowell-yes, Fleetwood-yes, Hall-yes, 
Hughes-yes, Salem-yes, and Speyer-yes, thus, 

 

 

 

 



  

7 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

March 28, 2024 

Agenda Item VI (A) 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2-24 

 

AUTHORIZING DEMOLITION OF 1102 W CENTRAL AVENUE 

 AND ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT 

 
was unanimously adopted. The resolution in its full text is incorporated in the Resolutions 
Journal of the Port Authority. 
 
 

B. Consider Construction Contract for One Government Center Plaza Repairs Phase 2 
 
Director Carroll recalled that One Government Center has been undergoing plaza repairs, 
with Phase 1 repairs completed in 2023. He reported that Phase 2 of the work would 
consist of additional waterproofing replacement and structural concrete repairs, demolition 
and removal and storage of existing granite pavers, removal of existing concrete fill slab, 
insulation, and a waterproofing and drainage system in designated areas. 
 
Director Carroll reported that the Planning & Operations Committee recommends approval 
of a resolution authorizing the President to enter into a contract with the lowest responsive 
and responsible bidder within the engineer’s estimate of $564,000. The cost of the project, 
including up to a 10% contingency, would be paid from previously appropriated capital 
improvement funds.  
 
Following discussion, upon the motion of Director Speyer, seconded by Director 
Blanchard, a roll call vote was taken with the following responses: Whitney-yes, 
Castellano-yes, Blanchard-yes, Carroll-yes, Cowell-yes, Fleetwood-yes, Hall-yes, 
Hughes-yes, Salem-yes, and Speyer-yes, thus, 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 3-24 

 

AUTHORIZING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR  

ONE GOVERNMENT CENTER PLAZA REPAIRS PHASE 2 

 
was unanimously adopted. The resolution in its full text is incorporated in the Resolutions 
Journal of the Port Authority. 
 

C. Consider Additional Appropriation for the Rehabilitation of West General Aviation 
Apron Project at Eugene F. Kranz Toledo Express Airport 
 
Director Carroll recalled that the Rehabilitation of the West General Aviation Apron Project 
at Eugene F. Kranz Toledo Express Airport is projected to cost $5,067,212, funding for 
which is $104,129 less than anticipated, requiring such amount to be funded by the Port 
Authority, in addition to the $219,361 previously appropriated local share.  
 
Director Carroll reported that the Planning & Operations Committee recommended 
approval of a resolution appropriating an additional $104,129 from Airport Reserves to 
fund the Port Authority’s local share costs associated with this project, which additional 
amount may be reimbursed through a future Passenger Facility Charge application.  
 



  

8 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

March 28, 2024 

Agenda Item VI (A) 
 

Following discussion, upon the motion of Director Fleetwood, seconded by Director 
Blanchard, a roll call vote was taken with the following responses: Whitney-yes, 
Castellano-yes, Blanchard-yes, Carroll-yes, Cowell-yes, Fleetwood-yes, Hall-yes, 
Hughes-yes, Salem-yes, and Speyer-yes, thus, 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 4-24 

 

AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION FOR THE  

REHABILITATION OF WEST GENERAL AVIATION APRON PROJECT  

AT EUGENE F. KRANZ TOLEDO EXPRESS AIRPORT 

 
was unanimously adopted. The resolution in its full text is incorporated in the Resolutions 
Journal of the Port Authority. 
 

GOVERNMENT, COMMUNITY & HUMAN RELATIONS COMMITTEE 

 
Director Cowell, Chair of the Government, Community & Human Relations Committee, 

referenced the Diversified Contactors Accelerator Report (“DCAP) contained in the meeting 
materials. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING THE EMPLOYMENT OF A 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PURSUANT TO OHIO REVISED CODE SECTION 121.22(G)(1) 

 

At 8:21 a.m., Chair Whitney sought a motion to meet in executive session for the purpose 
of considering employment of a public employee as authorized by Ohio Revised Code 121.22 (G) 
(1), which motion was made by Director Carroll and seconded by Director  
Blanchard. A roll call vote was taken with the following responses: Whitney-yes, Castellano-yes, 
Blanchard-yes, Carroll-yes, Cowell-yes, Fleetwood-yes, Hall-yes, Hughes-yes, Salem-yes, and 
Speyer-yes, whereafter the meeting was closed.   
 

At 9:17 a.m., upon motion by Director Hughes and seconded by Director Fleetwood, Chair 
Whitney adjourned the executive session and returned to the regular meeting, stating there was 
no action taken during the executive session.  
 

Director Cowell motioned to authorize Chair Whitney to finalize the 2024 compensation 
for the President & CEO. The motion was seconded by Director Fleetwood and followed by a roll 
call vote with the following responses: Whitney-yes, Castellano-yes, Blanchard-yes, Carroll-yes, 
Cowell-yes, Fleetwood-yes, Hall-yes, Hughes-yes, Salem-yes, and Speyer-yes. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 

Chair Whitney asked Ms. Wenk to review the rules for attaining a quorum at a board meeting, 
which was performed. Following, Chair Whitney requested that Ms. Wenk send a detail of the 
rules to the Board.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:20 a.m. 

 
 



  

9 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

Final Expenditures through December 2023 

The final Operating Statements for 2023 show total revenues of $17,732,900, 

which were 5.9% over budget, and total expenses of $12,859,200, which were 10.4% 

under budget, resulting in a 2023 year-end Fund Balance of $4,873,700. 

Airport Division revenues of $5,683,200 were 5.2% ahead of budget with most 

revenues coming in ahead.  Airport expenses of $5,129,600 were 4.2% under budget with 

most expenses categories falling under budget. Seaport Division revenues of $2,642,000 

were 15.4% ahead of budget with most revenues coming in ahead. Expenses of $799,300 

were 29.7% under budget with all expense categories falling under budget.  Facilities and 

Development Division revenues of $9,407,700 were 3.8% ahead of budget with most 

revenues coming in ahead of budget. Expenses of $6,930,300 were 11.8% under budget 

with most expense categories falling under budget.  Property Tax revenues of $2,441,722 

were used for the Port facilities repairs, improvements, debt payments and grants and 

loans to various neighborhood and community projects. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



  

10 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



  

11 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

Total Operating Budget 

December 2023 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



  

12 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

Airport Operating Budget  

December 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

13 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

Seaport Operating Budget  

December 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

14 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

Facilities & Development Operating Budget  

December 2023 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

15 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

Administration Operating Budget  

December 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

16 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

Unappropriated Reserve Funds  

December 2023 



  

17 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (C) 
 

Operating Results Through February 2024 

The Operating Statements through February 2024 show $683,086 excess 

operating revenue over operating expense. This is ahead of budget by $213,200 with 

revenues ahead of budget by $87,400 and expenses falling under budget by $125,900. 

Airport Division revenues of $805,500 were ahead of budget by $10,000. Airport 

expenses of $769,300 were under budget by $39,000. Seaport Division revenues of 

$341,900 were under budget by $27,300. Seaport expenses of $112,800 were under 

budget by $46,800. Facilities and Development Division revenues of $1,608,500 were 

ahead of budget by $104,800. Facilities and Development expenses of $1,190,700 were 

under budget by $40,100. The 2024 Operating Budget estimates a fund balance of 

$2,503,542 by the end of the year.   



  

18 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (C) 
 

 

 

 



  

19 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (C) 
 

 

 



  

20 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (C) 
 

Total Operating Budget  

February 2024 
 

 



  

21 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (C) 
 

Airport Operating Budget  

February 2024 

 

 
 



  

22 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (C) 
 

Seaport Operating Budget 

February 2024 

 
 

 



  

23 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (C) 
 

Facilities & Development Operating Budget  

February 2024 

 

 

 



  

24 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (C) 
 

Administration Operating Budget  

February 2024 

 

 



  

25 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (C) 
 

Unappropriated Reserve Funds 

February 2024 

 

 

 



  

26 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (C) 
 

Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) Activity  

Through February 2024 



  

27 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (C) 
 

Investment Report  



  

28 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (D) 
 

Consider Transfer of Funds for 2023 Operating Budget 
 

The Port Authority’s Operating Budget ended 2023 with a positive fund balance; 

however, some Operating Expense account groups exceeded the amounts appropriated.  

The Port Authority, as a unit of government, is required to make appropriations 

covering all disbursements by account group without respect to Operating Revenues. 

This is accomplished annually by action of the Board of Directors approving budget 

transfers from an Operating Expense budget account group that is under budget to an 

Operating Expense budget account group that is over budget.  

The Finance & Development Committee recommends adoption of the following 

resolution authorizing the transfers. 

 

 

 



  

29 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (D) 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

 

AUTHORIZING TRANSFER OF FUNDS FOR 2023 OPERATING BUDGET 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 46-22, the Board of Directors of the Toledo-Lucas 

County Port Authority made its annual appropriations for current expenses from its four (4) 

operating funds for the calendar year 2023; and 

 

WHEREAS, a portion of the funds appropriated to the several Airport, Seaport, and 

Facilities and Development accounts are not required for the purposes of such accounts and are 

available to be transferred to other accounts which exceeded the amounts budgeted and 

appropriated; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Toledo-Lucas 
County Port Authority: 

 
That the following appropriations heretofore made by Resolution No. 46-22 be and the 

same are hereby withdrawn from the Airport Fund and transferred as necessary to the 
unappropriated balances in the Airport Fund: 

  
 Personnel 123,237 
 Marketing 49,230 
 Repairs and maintenance 154,740 
 Cross charge 151,895 
 Capital improvements 31,624 
 
That there be and hereby is appropriated the sum of $283,508 from the unexpended and 

unappropriated balance in the Airport Fund which shall be transferred to over-budget Airport Fund 
accounts as necessary for the purposes of such accounts. 

 
That the following appropriations heretofore made by Resolution No. 46-22 be and the 

same are hereby withdrawn from the Facilities & Development Fund and transferred as necessary 
to the unappropriated balances in the Facilities & Development Fund: 

  
 Personnel 77,524 
 Marketing 1,209 
 Contractual services 193,717 
 Utilities 185,584 
 Repairs and maintenance 126,367  
 Cross charge 270,314 
 Capital improvements 74,086 

 

That there be and hereby is appropriated the sum of $1,057 from the unexpended and 
unappropriated balance in the Facilities and Development Fund which shall be transferred to over-
budget Facilities and Development Fund accounts as necessary for the purposes of such 
accounts. 
 
 



  

30 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (D) 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Fiscal Officer is authorized and directed to make 
such entries on the books of the Toledo-Lucas County Port Authority as are necessary to carry 
this Resolution into effect. 

 
That the Fiscal Officer is hereby authorized to draw warrants against said appropriations 

upon receipt of voucher or vouchers therefore. 
 
Approved:  
       _________________________________ 

Yeas: Robin Whitney, Chair  
 

 Nays:       _________________________________ 
               Thomas J. Winston, Secretary 

 



  

31 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (E) 
 

Financing Programs Dashboard 
 



  

32 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (F) 
 

BetterBuildings Northwest Ohio Dashboard 

 



  

33 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (G) 
 

Northwest Ohio Bond Fund Trustee’s Report 



  

34 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (H) 
 

Eugene F. Kranz Toledo Express Airport Statistics 

 

 

 



  

35 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (I) 
 

Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Plaza Passenger Statistics 

 

 



  

36 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (J)  
 

Diversified Contractors Accelerator Program Report 



  

37 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 1 
 

Consider Grant Agreement with U.S. Environmental 

Protection Agency Great Lakes National Program Office     

for Remedial Design of Contaminated Sediment Removal     

at Two Lower Maumee River Sites within the Maumee     

River Area of Concern       

The Port Authority, in partnership with the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency 

(OEPA) and The Ohio Department of Natural Resources (ODNR), has been creating 

space within the confined disposal facility, commonly known as Facility No. 3, to 

accommodate annual dredging cycles and other dredging projects. In Toledo, 100% of 

material dredged from the federal shipping channel has been placed in Facility No. 3 since 

2020.      

The Port Authority has been working with the OEPA and USEPA on several 

projects, including the design and engineering for removal of contaminated sediment in 

the Lower Maumee River (LMR) Sway Bridge and Wastewater Treatment Plan (WWTP) 

sites within the Maumee Area of Concern (AOC). The Sway Bridge site includes 

approximately one mile of the east side of the Maumee River along Front Street between 

the Seneca Petroleum Marine Terminal and the Ironville Marine Terminal. The WWTP 

site includes approximately 2500 linear feet on the west side of the Maumee River 

adjacent to the WWTP along Summit Street. It is expected that the sediment disposal for 

both the Sway Bridge and WWTP projects would be placed in the Port Authority’s dredge 

material management unit at Facility No. 3.  

After consultation with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, USEPA estimates the 

remedial design, engineering, and project administration is estimated to cost $4.8 million  



  

38 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 1 
 

and that amount would be granted to the Port Authority via a Great Lakes Restoration 

Initiative Area of Concern (GLRI-AOC) non-competitive grant allocation to fund and 

administer the project. GLNPO would provide approximately six percent (6%) of the total 

project cost to the Port Authority for project administration and management. The Port 

Authority would work with the USEPA, the Ohio EPA, and select stakeholders to form a 

project management team that would work together to select consultants and contractors 

per the requirements of the grant agreement. 

The Finance & Development Committee recommends adoption of the following 

resolution authorizing the President to enter into all agreements necessary to accept the 

grant funds and to execute any agreements that may be required for the Port Authority to 

administer and advance the project. The Committee also recommends authorizing the 

President to enter into agreements with engineering and design consultants and 

contractors to facilitate the project in accordance with the requirements of the grant and 

the Port Authority’s selection process. 



  

39 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT WITH U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

AGENCY GREAT LAKES NATIONAL PROGRAM OFFICE FOR REMEDIAL 

DESIGN OF CONTAMINATED SEDIMENT REMOVAL AT TWO LOWER MAUMEE 

RIVER SITES WITHIN THE MAUMEE RIVER AREA OF CONCERN 
 

WHEREAS, the Port Authority, in partnership with the Ohio Environmental Protection 
Agency (OEPA) and the Ohio Department of Natural Resources (ODNR), has been creating 
space within the confined disposal facility, commonly known as Facility No. 3, to accommodate 
annual dredging cycles and other dredging projects, with 100% of material dredged from the 
federal shipping channel in Toledo being placed in Facility No. 3 since 2020; and    

 
WHEREAS, the Port Authority has been awarded $4.8 million from the U.S. Environmental 

Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) through a Great Lakes Restoration Initiative Area of Concern non-
competitive grant allocation to administer the design and engineering for the removal of 
contaminated sediment in the Lower Maumee River Sway Bridge and Wastewater Treatment 
Plan sites within the Maumee Area of Concern; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Port Authority, the U.S. EPA, and the OEPA will form a project 

management team to select consultants and engineers consistent with the requirements of the 
funding agreement;  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Toledo-Lucas 
County Port Authority: 
 

That the President, as Secretary and Fiscal Officer, be and hereby is authorized to accept 
grant funds from the U.S. EPA in the amount of $4,800,000 for the Remedial Design for 
Contaminated Sediment at Two Lower Maumee River Sites within the Maumee Area of Concern 
(the “Project”).  

 
That the President, as Secretary and Fiscal Officer, be and hereby is authorized to execute 

agreements that are required for the Port Authority to administer the Project, including, but not 
limited to, agreements with engineering and design consultants, which agreements shall include 
such terms and conditions as the President deems necessary or appropriate. 

 
That the President, as Secretary and Fiscal Officer, be and hereby is authorized to execute 

any other instruments necessary or appropriate, including amendments, in order to implement the 
terms of this resolution, provided such instruments are in a form approved by Counsel and 
approved in substance by the Vice President of Business Development.  

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
Approved:  
       _________________________________ 

Yeas: Robin Whitney, Chair 
 

 Nays:       _________________________________ 
                 Thomas J. Winston, Secretary



  

40 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 1a 
 

Exhibit A 

 



  

41 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 1a 
 

Exhibit B 

 

Sway Bridge – Extended dredging of all areas above the sediment remedial goal 

 



  

42 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 1a 
 

Exhibit C 

 

Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP) – Dredging continuous areas above the sediment 

remedial goal



  

43 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 2 
 

Consider Inducement of Not to Exceed $25,000,000 of 

Revenue Obligations to Fund the Acquisition, Construction, 

Rehabilitation, Installation and Equipping of a Residential 

Apartment Project to be Leased to Thurgood Marshall Senior 

Housing, LLC (or an Affiliate or Subsidiary Thereof)  

The Port Authority has been requested to take the necessary steps to issue up to 

$25,000,000 in revenue bonds, notes, or obligations (as such instruments may be titled 

or designated) ("Obligations") which will be used to acquire, construct, install, rehabilitate, 

and equip an approximately 86-unit residential apartment to be located at 420 E. 

Manhattan Boulevard in the City of Toledo, Ohio (the “Project”). The Project, to be 

developed in conjunction with Lucas Metropolitan Housing Authority, the Area Office on 

Aging of Northwestern Ohio, Community Building Partners and NeighborWorks Toledo 

Region,  will consist of the conversion of the Thurgood Marshall Building -  a former school 

which most recently housed the administrative offices of the Toledo Public Schools - to 

senior housing for residents with incomes that are less than or equal to 60% of area 

median income. The Project will consist of two buildings, including a total of approximately 

86 residential units. The Project will be leased to Thurgood Marshall Senior Housing, LLC, 

an Ohio limited liability company, or its assigns, subsidiaries affiliates and related parties 

(the “Company”) pursuant to a capital lease. The Company will act as the Port Authority's 

construction agent for the Project. The total costs of the Project are currently estimated 

to be approximately $33,000,000. 

The Obligations will be sold, on a private placement basis, to a financial institution 

to be identified by the Company. Under the Lease, the Company will agree to make lease 

payments in an amount sufficient to pay the Obligations. The Obligations will be payable 



  

44 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 2 
 

solely from such lease payments and will not otherwise be an obligation of the Port 

Authority.   

 In order to provide for the acquisition, construction, installation, rehabilitation and 

equipping of the Project, the Company has requested that the Port Authority enact a 

resolution providing authorization for the issuance of the Obligations to pay the costs of 

constructing, installing and equipping the Project, the appointment of the Company as the 

Port Authority's construction agent and the lease of the Project to the Company.   

 The Finance & Development Committee recommends the adoption of the following 

inducement resolution authorizing the lease of the Project and issuance of Obligations by 

the Port Authority as described above. 



  

45 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO.___ 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONSIDERATION AND 

EXAMINATION OF A FUTURE ISSUANCE OF REVENUE 

OBLIGATIONS FOR THURGOOD MARSHALL SENIOR 

HOUSING, LLC, A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, 

PERTAINING TO THE FINANCING OF THE COSTS OF 

CONSTRUCTING, INSTALLING, REHABILITATING AND 

EQUIPPING A FACILITY TO BE LEASED ON A CAPITAL 

LEASE BASIS TO THE COMPANY OR ASSIGNS, 

COMPRISING A RESIDENTIAL APARTMENT LOCATED IN 

TOLEDO, OHIO AND APPROVING RELATED MATTERS 

WHEREAS, the Toledo-Lucas County Port Authority (“Issuer”), by virtue of the laws of the 
State of Ohio, particularly Sections 4582.01 through 4582.20, Ohio Revised Code, as amended (the 
“Act”) and the authorities therein mentioned, has been requested to take the necessary actions for 
the issuance of revenue bonds, notes or obligations (as such instruments may be titled or 
designated) in the aggregate principal amount now estimated not to exceed $25,000,000 (the 
“Obligations”) for the purpose of providing funds to pay the costs of acquiring, constructing, installing, 
rehabilitating and equipping a port authority facility (“Project”), within the boundaries of the Issuer 
comprising an 86-unit residential apartment located on a site located at 420 E. Manhattan Boulevard 
in the City of Toledo, Lucas County, Ohio to be leased on a capital lease basis, to Thurgood Marshall 
Senior Housing, LLC or assigns, subsidiaries, affiliates and related parties (collectively the 
“Company”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Company wishes to proceed with the necessary actions for the structuring 

of its financing program relative to the Project and has requested an expression of the Issuer’s 
conditional willingness to authorize the issuance of the Obligations; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Toledo-Lucas 

County Port Authority: 
 

Section 1.  This Board does hereby find and determine that: 

1. The Project will be a port authority facility within the meaning of the Act; and 

2. The Project is consistent with the purpose of Sections 13 and 16 of Article VIII, Ohio 

Constitution, will create or preserve jobs and employment opportunities, will enhance the 

availability of adequate housing, will improve the economic welfare and general well-being of 

the people of the State of Ohio, and will provide and promote economic development and 

housing within the jurisdiction of the Issuer and within the State. 

Section 2. In order to provide funds to pay costs of the Project this Board hereby agrees, subject 

to compliance with the applicable requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 

(the “Code”), and subject to the negotiation of one or more term sheets with the  

 

Company that are satisfactory to the Issuer in its discretion, to consider authorizing and issuing 

Obligations of the Issuer in the maximum aggregate face amount of $25 million, or such greater 



  

46 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 2 
 

amount as is necessary to pay actual costs of the Project pursuant to the Act and to make available 

the proceeds of such issuance to the Company to pay or reimburse the Company for the costs of 

the Project.  The President of the Issuer or the Director of Finance & Special Projects of the Issuer 

are each hereby further authorized to execute any instruments that are necessary or appropriate in 

order to implement the intent of this resolution, provided that such instruments are in a form approved 

by counsel to the Issuer. 

 

Section 3. The Issuer declares that it reasonably expects that a portion of the expenditures 

described in Section 2 related to the public improvements above will be reimbursed with the proceeds 

of bonds (as defined in Section 150 of the Internal Revenue Code). The officers identified in Section 

2 above are each authorized to make appropriate reimbursement and timely allocations from the 

proceeds of the Obligations to reimburse qualified prior expenditures and to take any other such 

actions as may be appropriate, all at the times and in the manner required under Treas. Reg. §1.150-

2 to satisfy the requirements for the reimbursement to be treated as an expenditure of such proceeds 

for purposes of Sections 103 and 141 to 150 of the Code, to the extent such sections apply to the 

Obligations or any series thereof. No advance from any fund or account or order for payment with 

respect to the Project may be made for expenditures (other than expenditures excepted from the 

requirement under Treas. Reg. §1.150-2) that are to be reimbursed subsequently from proceeds of 

the Bands except to the extent that this resolution is adopted within the time required by Treas. Reg. 

§1.150-2. 

 

Section 4. This Board finds and determines that for purposes of Section 42(h)(4) of the Code and 

HUD Notice 87 FR 64515, that on or before December 31, 2023 the Borrower submitted a complete 

application to the Issuer and that no more than a de minimis clarification of the Application is required 

for this Board to make a decision about the issuance of the Obligations. 

 

Section 5. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Board concerning and relating 

to the adoption of this resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Board, and that all 

deliberations of this Board and of any of its committees, subcommittees or other public bodies that 

resulted in such formal actions, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with the law. 

Section 6. Any one or more of the President or Director of Finance & Special Projects of the 

Issuer is hereby authorized to execute any instruments that are necessary or appropriate in order to 

implement the intent of this resolution, provided that such instruments are in form approved by 

counsel to the Board. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Approved:  
       _________________________________ 

Yeas: Robin Whitney, Chair 
 

 Nays:       _________________________________ 
                 Thomas J. Winston, Secretary



  

47 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 3 
 

Consider Issuance of Revenue Bonds to Finance the Costs of 

Acquiring, Constructing, Developing, Equipping, Improving, 

and Installing Port Authority Facilities in Support of Principle 

Industries, Inc. ($8,000,000) 

 

The Toledo-Lucas County Port Authority (the “Port Authority”) has been asked to 

issue up to $8,000,000 in taxable revenue bonds through the Northwest Ohio Bond Fund 

(the “Bonds”) for the benefit of Principle Industries, Inc. and its affiliates, including 

Principle Business Enterprises, Inc., Gelok International Corporation, and CTE, Ltd. 

(collectively, “Principle”). The Bonds will finance costs of a new manufacturing production 

line to be located at an approximately 254,750 sq. ft. facility, all constituting “port authority 

facilities” (the “Project”). The Project is located on certain real property owned by CTE, 

Ltd. in the Dunbridge area of Middleton Township, Wood County, Ohio (the “Project Site”).  

The expected total Project funding amount is approximately $23,000,000. The 

expected principal amount of the Bonds to be issued is $7,000,000. Principle expects to 

obtain additional financing for costs of the Project from bonds to be issued through the 

State of Ohio Enterprise Bond Fund in the approximate principal amount of $13,660,000 

(the “OEBF Bonds”). Principle further expects to provide additional funding for the Project 

through an equity contribution in the approximate amount of $2,300,000.   

The proceeds of the Bonds will be used to refinance a portion of the overall costs 

of the Project, including costs of issuance of the Bonds and the 10% bond reserve deposit.  

Costs of the Project have initially been financed through bridge financing provided 

by a traditional bank and by equity provided by Principle. The proceeds of the Bonds will 

be used to refinance a portion of the bridge financing and equity in excess of 



  

48 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 3 
 

approximately 10% of the total costs of the Project. The Project equipment will have been 

installed and commissioned to the satisfaction of Principle, and all payments to 

contractors will have been approved by Principle, prior to the issuance of the Bonds. 

 The Bonds will be repaid by monthly loan payments to be made by Principle under 

the terms of a loan agreement and promissory note. The loan will be secured by a parity 

first security position in the Project equipment shared with the trustee for the OEBF Bonds 

(the “OEBF Trustee”). The loan will be further secured by a parity second mortgage and 

security position in the Project Site shared with the OEBF Trustee. 

 Payment of the loan will be guaranteed by Principle Business Enterprises, Inc., 

Gelok International Corporation, CTE, Ltd. (the “Corporate Guarantors”). The Bank of 

New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee for the Northwest Ohio Bond Fund 

program (the “Trustee”), will receive the proceeds of the Bonds and administer the 

disbursement of those proceeds to finance the costs of the Project.  The Trustee further 

will receive the loan payments from Principle and use them to make payments on the 

Bonds. 

 The Finance & Development Committee recommends adoption of the following 

resolution authorizing the issuance of the Bonds in the maximum principal amount of up 

to $8,000,000 to be used to finance costs of the Project.  



  

49 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 3 
 

RESOLUTION NO.___ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF A 

MAXIMUM AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $8,000,000 OF 

TAXABLE REVENUE BONDS OF THE TOLEDO-LUCAS COUNTY 

PORT AUTHORITY UNDER THE NORTHWEST OHIO BOND FUND 

PROGRAM FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING COSTS OF “PORT 

AUTHORITY FACILITIES” WITHIN THE MEANING OF OHIO 

REVISED CODE SECTION 4582.01; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 

AND DELIVERY OF A SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE TO 

SECURE SUCH BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 

DELIVERY OF A LOAN AGREEMENT, MORTGAGES, ASSIGNMENTS 

OF LEASES AND RENTS, SECURITY AGREEMENTS, AND FIXTURE 

FILINGS, A DISBURSEMENT AGREEMENT, A COLLATERAL AGENT 

AGREEMENT, AND A COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT OF MORTGAGE; 

AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF THE REVENUE BONDS PURSUANT TO 

A BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 

AND DISTRIBUTION OF A DISCLOSURE STATEMENT IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE SALE OF THE REVENUE BONDS; AND 

AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING RELATED MATTERS 

 WHEREAS, the Toledo-Lucas County Port Authority (the “Port Authority”), a body 

corporate and politic duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of Ohio (the 

“State”), is authorized and empowered, by virtue of the laws of the State, including without 

limitation, Section 13 of Article VIII, Ohio Constitution, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4582, and 

Ohio Revised Code Section 122.012 (collectively, the “Act”), (i) to issue its revenue bonds for the 

purpose of financing the costs of acquiring, constructing, developing, equipping, improving, and 

installing “port authority facilities,” including real or personal property or real or personal property 

related to, useful for, and in furtherance of “authorized purposes” of the Port Authority, as defined 

in Ohio Revised Code Section 4582.01, located within the boundaries of Lucas County, Ohio, (ii) 

to enter into agreements with respect to the financing, acquiring, constructing, developing, 

equipping, improving, and installing of such facilities and to provide for a pledge of certain 

revenues sufficient to pay the principal of and interest and any premium on those revenue bonds, 

(iii) to secure those revenue bonds by a trust indenture and one or more supplemental trust 

indentures, and (iv) to enact this Bond Legislation, to enter into the Series 2024B Supplemental 

Indenture, the Series 2024B Agreement, the Series 2024B Security Agreements, the Collateral 

Agent Agreement, the Disbursement Agreement, and the Series 2024B Collateral Assignment, 

and to issue and sell the Series 2024B Bonds pursuant to the Bond Purchase Agreement, as  

 



  

50 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 3 
 

each such term is defined in Section 1, upon the terms and conditions provided herein and therein; 

and 

 WHEREAS, Principle Industries, Inc. and its affiliates, including Principle Business 

Enterprises, Inc., Gelok International Corporation, and CTE, Ltd. (collectively, and together with 

their other affiliates and related entities, the “Contracting Party”) has requested that the Port 

Authority and the State of Ohio, through its Ohio Enterprise Bond Fund, provide financing to pay 

the costs of acquiring, constructing, developing, equipping, furnishing, improving, and installing 

“port authority facilities” consisting of a new manufacturing production line for the production of 

various adult incontinence products at its approximately 254,750 square-foot building and related 

on-site facilities, located in the Dunbridge area of Middleton Township, Wood County, Ohio (the 

“Series 2024B Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, after advice from Port Authority staff, administrative officers, and advisors, 

this Legislative Authority has determined that it is necessary and proper and in the best interest 

of the Port Authority at this time to finance a portion of the costs of the Series 2024B Project by 

issuing a series of revenue bonds in the maximum aggregate principal amount of $8,000,000; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Board of Directors of the Toledo-Lucas County 

Port Authority: 

 

Definitions.  In addition to the words and terms elsewhere defined in this Bond Legislation, the 

following words and terms as used in this Bond Legislation shall have the following meanings 

unless otherwise provided and unless the context or use indicates another or different meaning 

or intent: 

 

 “Act” means Section 13 of Article VIII of the Ohio Constitution, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 

4582, as enacted and amended from time to time, and Ohio Revised Code Section 122.012, as 

enacted and amended from time to time. 

 

 “Authorized Denominations” means $100,000 and any integral multiple of $5,000 in 

excess of $100,000, or such other denominations as may be designated in the Certificate of 

Award. 

 

 “Basic Indenture” means the Trust Indenture between the Port Authority and the Trustee 

dated as of August 15, 1988. 

 

 “Bond Fund” means the Bond Fund created by the Basic Indenture. 

 

 “Bond Legislation” means this resolution and the Certificate of Award executed pursuant 

to this resolution, as either or both may be amended from time to time. 

 

“Bond Purchase Agreement” means any bond purchase agreement or bond placement 

agreement for the Series 2024B Bonds between the Port Authority and the Original Purchaser or 



  

51 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 3 
 

any additional, fewer, or other parties as may be designated in the Certificate of Award, as it may 

be validly amended or supplemented and in effect from time to time. 

 

 “Bond Reserve Deposit” means the amount to be deposited in the Series 2024B PRF 

Principal Subaccount in the Series 2024B PRF Account in the Primary Reserve Fund, which 

amount shall be provided as set forth in the Certificate of Award. 

 

 “Bonds” means Bonds as defined in the Basic Indenture. 

 

 “Bond Service Charges” means, for any period or payable at any time, the principal of, 

and interest and any premium on, the Series 2024B Bonds for that period or payable at that time, 

whether due at maturity or upon acceleration or redemption. 

 

 “Book Entry Form” or “book entry system” means a form or system under which (a) the 

ownership of book entry interests in Series 2024B Bonds and the principal of and interest on the 

Series 2024B Bonds may be transferred only through a book entry, and (b) physical Series 2024B 

Bond certificates in fully registered form are issued only to a Depository or its nominee as 

registered owner, with the physical Series 2024B Bond certificates “immobilized” in the custody 

of the Depository.  The book entry maintained by others than the Trustee is the record that 

identifies the owners of book entry interests in those Series 2024B Bonds and that principal and 

interest. 

 

 “Certificate of Award” means the certificate or certificates executed by the Executive, the 

Fiscal Officer, or both pursuant to Section 3 of this Bond Legislation.  

 

“Collateral Agent” means the Person from time to time duly appointed to serve as 

“Collateral Agent” under the Collateral Agent Agreement, initially, The Huntington National Bank. 

 

 “Collateral Agent Agreement means the collateral agent agreement or similar instrument, 

as may be designated in the Certificate of Award, if any, dated as of the date of the Series 2024B 

Bonds or as otherwise may be designated in the Certificate of Award, between the Port Authority, 

the Trustee, TOS, and the OEBF Trustee, or such additional, fewer, or other parties as may be 

determined in the Certificate of Award, as it may validly be amended or supplemented and in 

effect from time to time. 

 

 “Contracting Party” means Principle Industries, Inc., an Ohio corporation, together with its 

affiliates, including Principle Business Enterprises, Inc., an Ohio corporation, Gelok International 

Corporation, an Ohio corporation, and CTE, Ltd., an Ohio limited liability company, together with 

their affiliates or related entities, all as may be designated in the Certificate of Award and its 

permitted successors and assigns. 

 

 “Depository” means any securities depository that is a clearing agency under federal law 

operating and maintaining, with its Participants or otherwise, a book entry system to record  



  

52 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 3 
 

ownership of book entry interests in Series 2024B Bonds or the principal of and interest on the 

Series 2024B Bonds, and to effect transfers of Series 2024B Bonds, in book entry form, and 

includes and means initially The Depository Trust Company (a limited purpose trust company), 

New York, New York. 

 

“Disbursement Agreement” means the disbursement agreement or similar instrument as 

may be designated in the Certificate of Award, if any, dated as of the date of the Series 2024B 

Bonds, or as may otherwise be designated in the Certificate of Award, between the Port Authority, 

the Trustee, TOS, the OEBF Trustee, and the Contracting Party, or such additional, fewer, or 

other parties as may be designated in the Certificate of Award, as it may validly be amended or 

supplemented and in effect from time to time. 

 

 “Disclosure Statement” means the official statement, private placement memorandum, or 

other offering document authorized by this Bond Legislation for use in connection with the initial 

sale of the Series 2024B Bonds. 

 

 “Executive” means the President of the Port Authority or the Chair or Vice Chair of the 

Legislative Authority. 

 

 “Financial Advisor” means DiPerna & Company, LLC. 

 

 “Fiscal Officer” means the Secretary and Fiscal Officer or an Assistant Secretary and 

Fiscal Officer of the Port Authority. 

 

 “Holder” or “holder of a Series 2024B Bond” means the person in whose name a Series 

2024B Bond is registered on the register maintained initially by the Trustee. 

 

 “Indenture” means the Basic Indenture and all supplements or amendments to the Basic 

Indenture. 

 

 “Interest Payment Date” means, as to the Series 2024B Bonds, the fifteenth day of each 

May and November, commencing with the May 15 or November 15 specified in the Certificate of 

Award, or such other dates as may be designated in the Certificate of Award. 

 

 “Legal Officer” means the Staff Counsel of the Port Authority. 

 

 “Legislative Authority” means the Board of Directors of the Port Authority. 

 

“OEBF Indenture” means the Trust Agreement dated as of April 1, 1988, as amended and 

supplemented, between the OEBF Trustee and the State. 

 

 

 



  

53 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 3 
 

 “OEBF Trustee” means The Huntington National Bank, as successor trustee to The 

Provident Bank, under the OEBF Indenture, together with any successor trustees. 

 

 “Original Purchaser” means, as to the Series 2024B Bonds, the entity or entities 

designated in the Certificate of Award. 

 

 “Participant” means any participant contracting with a Depository under a book entry 

system and includes securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies, and clearing 

corporations. 

 

 “Pledged Revenues” means Pledged Revenues as defined in the Basic Indenture. 

 

 “Primary Reserve Fund” means the Primary Reserve Fund created by the Basic Indenture. 

 

 “Project Fund” means the Project Fund created by the Basic Indenture. 

 

 “Series” means Series as defined in the Basic Indenture. 

 

 “Series 2024B Agreement” means the loan agreement or similar agreement by which the 

Port Authority, as lender, loans the proceeds of the Series 2024B Bonds to the Contracting Party, 

as borrower, to be dated as of the first day of the month in which the Series 2024B Bonds are 

executed and delivered, or any other date as may be designated in the Certificate of Award, as it 

may be duly amended or supplemented from time to time. 

 

 “Series 2024B Bonds” means, the revenue bonds authorized by this Bond Legislation to 

be issued under the Northwest Ohio Bond Fund Program pursuant to the Series 2024B 

Supplemental Indenture. 

 

 “Series 2024B Collateral Assignment” means the Collateral Assignment Agreement, to be 

dated as of the date of execution and delivery of the Series 2024B Bonds, or any other date as 

may be designated in the Certificate of Award, from the Trustee and the Port Authority to Fifth 

Third Bank, Cincinnati, Ohio, or any successor program reserve letter of credit bank, as it may be 

validly amended or supplemented and in effect from time to time. 

 

“Series 2024B Project” means the Series 2024B Project, as defined in the Series 2024B 

Agreement, being “port authority facilities” as defined in the Act. 

 

“Series 2024B Project Equipment” means the Series 2024B Project Equipment, as defined 

in the Series 2024B Agreement, being “port authority facilities” as defined in the Act. 

 

“Series 2024B Project Site” means the Series 2024B Project Site, as defined in the Series 

2024B Agreement, being “port authority facilities” as defined in the Act. 

 



  

54 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 3 
 

“Series 2024B Security Agreements” means one or more mortgages, security 

agreements, assignments of rents and leases, fixtures filings or any similar instruments, to be 

dated as of the date of execution and delivery of the Series 2024B Bonds, or any other date as 

may be designated in the Certificate of Award, pursuant to which the Contracting Party grants to 

the Trustee or to the Collateral Agent a shared first priority security interest in the Series 2024B 

Project Equipment and a shared second priority security interest in the Series 2024B Project Site 

to secure the Bonds, as they may be validly amended or supplemented and in effect from time to 

time. 

 

 “Series 2024B Supplemental Indenture” means the Supplemental Indenture authorized by 

this Bond Legislation securing the Series 2024B Bonds, to be dated as of the first day of the 

month in which the Series 2024B Bonds are executed and delivered, or any other date as may 

be designated in the Certificate of Award, between the Port Authority and the Trustee, as it may 

be validly amended or supplemented and in effect from time to time, the numerical designation of 

which is to be assigned as provided in Section 3(a) of this Bond Legislation. 

 

 “Special Funds” means, collectively, the Special Funds as established under and identified 

in the Basic Indenture and in the custody of the Trustee. 

 

 “State” means the State of Ohio. 

 

 “Supplemental Indenture” means Supplemental Indenture as defined in the Basic 

Indenture. 

 

“Taxable Bonds” means Taxable Bonds as defined in the Basic Indenture. 

 

“TOS” means the Treasurer of State of Ohio, acting on behalf of the State under the 

General Bond Order dated April 11, 1988 with respect to the OEBF Indenture. 

 

 “Trustee” means The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., or any successor 

Trustee permitted under the Indenture. 

 

 The captions and headings in this Bond Legislation are solely for convenience of reference 

and do not define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or Sections of this Bond 

Legislation.  Words or terms used herein with initial capital letters and not defined herein shall 

have the meanings given to them in the Basic Indenture and the Series 2024B Supplemental 

Indenture. 

 

Determinations by Legislative Authority.  This Legislative Authority determines that: (i) it 

is necessary and proper and in the best interest of the Port Authority to, and the Port Authority 

shall issue, sell, and deliver the Series 2024B Bonds in the maximum aggregate principal amount 

of $8,000,000 at this time, as provided and authorized in this Bond Legislation and in the  

 



  

55 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 3 
 

Indenture, including the Series 2024B Supplemental Indenture, and pursuant to the authority of 

the Act, for the purpose of paying a portion of the costs of the Series 2024B Project; (ii) the Series 

2024B Project constitutes “port authority facilities” as defined in the Act, and is consistent with the 

purposes of the Act; (iii) the utilization of the Series 2024B Project is in furtherance of the purposes 

of the Act and will benefit the people of the State by creating jobs and employment opportunities 

and improving the economic welfare of the people of the State; and (iv) provision of the Series 

2024B Project requires the issuance, sale, and delivery of the Series 2024B Bonds.  

 

Terms and Provisions of the Series 2024B Bonds. 

 

Generally.  The Series 2024B Bonds (i) shall be issued, unless a Supplemental Indenture 

shall have been executed and delivered pursuant to Section 8.02(h) of the Basic Indenture, only 

in fully registered form, substantially in the form utilized for prior Series of Taxable Bonds; (ii) shall 

be exchangeable for Series 2024B Bonds of the same Series and of Authorized Denominations, 

as provided in the Indenture; (iii) shall be numbered in such manner as determined by the Trustee 

in order to distinguish each Series 2024B Bond from any other Series 2024B Bond; (iv) shall be 

in Authorized Denominations; (v) shall be subject to optional and mandatory sinking fund 

redemption in the amounts and at the times and prices for which provision is made in the 

Certificate of Award and in the manner set forth in this Bond Legislation and upon the conditions 

set forth in the Indenture; (vi) shall be dated as of the date designated in the Certificate of Award; 

and (vii) shall be signed by the Executive and the Fiscal Officer in their official capacities; provided, 

that either or both of such signatures may be a facsimile.  Each Series 2024B Bond shall bear 

interest, payable on the Interest Payment Dates, from the most recent date to which interest has 

been paid or duly provided for or, if no interest has been paid or duly provided for, from its date.  

The Series 2024B Bonds shall be issued in one or more series, all as may be determined by the 

Executive or Fiscal Officer in the Certificate of Award.  The Series 2024B Bonds shall initially be 

designated “Toledo-Lucas County Port Authority Taxable Development Revenue Bonds 

(Northwest Ohio Bond Fund) Series 2024B (Principle Industries, Inc. Project)” or as otherwise 

may be determined by the Executive or Fiscal Officer in the Certificate of Award consistent with 

the Disclosure Statement utilized in connection with the initial sale of the Series 2024B Bonds 

and as may be appropriate in order to distinguish the Series 2024B Bonds from the several other 

Series of Bonds issued under the Basic Indenture or otherwise theretofore executed and 

delivered.  The Series 2024B Supplemental Indenture shall be designated as the “One Hundred 

Ninth Supplemental Trust Indenture” or as otherwise may be determined by the Executive or 

Fiscal Officer in the Certificate of Award consistent with the Disclosure Statement utilized in 

connection with the initial sale of the Series 2024B Bonds and as may be appropriate in order to 

distinguish the Series 2024B Supplemental Indenture from the respective Supplemental 

Indentures securing the several other Series of Bonds issued under the Basic Indenture or 

otherwise theretofore executed and delivered. 

 

Book Entry System.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Bond Legislation or the 

Indenture, if it is determined in the Certificate of Award that it is in the best interest of and 

financially advantageous to the Port Authority, the Series 2024B Bonds may be issued to a  



  

56 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 3 
 

Depository for use in a book entry system and, if and as long as a book entry system is utilized, 

(i) the Series 2024B Bonds may be issued in the form of a single, fully registered Series 2024B 

Bond representing each maturity and registered in the name of the Depository or its nominee, as 

registered owner, and immobilized in the custody of the Depository; (ii) except as otherwise 

provided in the Series 2024B Supplemental Indenture, the book entry interest owners of Series 

2024B Bonds in book entry form shall not have any right to receive Series 2024B Bonds in the 

form of physical securities or certificates; (iii) ownership of book entry interests in Series 2024B  

 

Bonds in book entry form shall be shown by book entry on the system maintained and 

operated by the Depository and its Participants, and transfers of the ownership of book entry 

interests shall be made only by book entry by the Depository and its Participants; and (iv) the 

Series 2024B Bonds as such shall not be transferable or exchangeable, except for transfer to 

another Depository or to another nominee of a Depository, without further action by the Port 

Authority. 

 

Interest Rates and Principal Maturities.  The Executive or the Fiscal Officer shall execute 

the Certificate of Award at or prior to the time the Series 2024B Bonds are issued.  The Series 

2024B Bonds shall bear interest at the annual rate or rates per year, payable on each Interest 

Payment Date (provided that the Certificate of Award may provide for a delay of not to exceed 

twelve months in the first Interest Payment Date), and shall mature and be subject to mandatory 

redemption on May 15 or November 15, or both, in the years and in the principal amounts, all as 

shall be set forth in the Certificate of Award; provided, that no rate of interest therein specified 

shall exceed the maximum rate allowed by law.  The Certificate of Award shall fix the principal 

amount of the Series 2024B Bonds to be issued which shall not exceed $8,000,000.  The 

Certificate of Award shall fix the maturity or maturities and the optional and mandatory redemption 

provisions, including any mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions, of the Series 2024B 

Bonds so as to provide the Port Authority with the lowest feasible interest cost but within the 

amount that is reasonably expected to be realized from payments made by the Contracting Party 

under the Series 2024B Agreement.  The procedures, credits and conditions for the satisfaction 

of the mandatory sinking fund requirements shall be as set forth in the Basic Indenture.   

 

Certificate of Award.  The terms and provisions set forth in this Section 3 for each series 

of Series 2024B Bonds may be altered through a determination made by the Executive or Fiscal 

Officer in the Certificate of Award.  Other terms of the Series 2024B Bonds may be specified in 

the Certificate of Award or the Series 2024B Supplemental Indenture.  All matters determined in 

the Certificate of Award, as the same may be amended or supplemented, shall be conclusive and 

binding. 

 

Sale of the Series 2024B Bonds: Disclosure Statement.  The Series 2024B Bonds shall 

be sold in a direct sale and are hereby awarded to the Original Purchaser at the purchase price 

set forth in the Certificate of Award, plus any accrued interest from their date to the date of their 

delivery and payment therefor.  Fees payable in connection with the issuance and sale of the  

 



  

57 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 3 
 

Series 2024B Bonds, including any fees under the Bond Purchase Agreement and any fees of 

the Port Authority’s Financial Advisor, bond counsel, and disclosure counsel may be paid from 

the proceeds of the Series 2024B Bonds or other available amounts and are hereby appropriated 

for that purpose. 

 

 The Executive and the Fiscal Officer are directed to make the necessary arrangements 

on behalf of the Port Authority to establish the date, location, procedure, and conditions for the 

delivery of the Series 2024B Bonds to the Original Purchaser.  Those officers are further directed 

to take all actions necessary to effect due execution, authentication, and delivery of the Series  

 

2024B Bonds under the terms of this Bond Legislation, the Indenture, the Series 2024B 

Supplemental Indenture, and the Bond Purchase Agreement. 

 

 It is determined by this Legislative Authority that the price for and the terms of the Series 

2024B Bonds, and the sale thereof, all as provided in this Bond Legislation, the Indenture, and 

the Bond Purchase Agreement, are in the best interests of the Port Authority and are in 

compliance with all legal requirements. 

 

 The distribution of a Disclosure Statement of the Port Authority, substantially in the form 

used in connection with prior Series of Taxable Bonds, relating to the initial sale of the Series 

2024B Bonds, but with modifications necessary to reflect the method of sale and the terms of the 

Series 2024B Bonds, is hereby approved.  The Executive, the Fiscal Officer, and any other official 

of the Port Authority are each hereby authorized and directed to complete and execute, on behalf 

of the Port Authority and in their official capacities, a final Disclosure Statement, which final 

Disclosure Statement shall be substantially in the form of the preliminary Disclosure Statement if 

a preliminary Disclosure Statement has been distributed with such modifications, changes, and 

supplements as are necessary or desirable for the purposes thereof as such officers shall 

approve.  Such officers are authorized to use and distribute, or authorize the use and distribution 

of, any preliminary Disclosure Statement and the final Disclosure Statement and any supplements 

thereto as so executed in connection with the issuance of the Series 2024B Bonds, and are each 

authorized and directed to advise the Original Purchaser in writing regarding limitations on the 

use of any preliminary Disclosure Statement and the final Disclosure Statement and any 

supplements thereto as the officer acting deems necessary or appropriate to protect the interests 

of the Port Authority.  The Executive, the Fiscal Officer, and any other official of the Port Authority 

are each authorized to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Port Authority and in their official 

capacities, such certificates in connection with the accuracy of any preliminary Disclosure 

Statement, the final Disclosure Statement and any supplements thereto as, in their judgment, may 

be necessary or appropriate. 

 

Application of Proceeds of the Series 2024B Bonds. The proceeds of the sale of the Series 

2024B Bonds shall be allocated and deposited as set forth in the Certificate of Award. 

 

 



  

58 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 3 
 

Security for the Series 2024B Bonds.  As provided in the Indenture, the Series 2024B 

Bonds shall be payable solely from the Pledged Revenues and the funds established under the 

Basic Indenture and shall be secured equally and ratably (i) by an assignment of and a lien on 

(A) the Special Funds, (B) the Pledged Revenues, and (C) such other collateral as may from time 

to time be assigned, provided, however, that any assignment of or lien on any fund, account, 

receivables, revenues, money or other intangible property not in the custody of the Trustee shall 

be valid and enforceable only to the extent permitted by law, and (ii) by the Indenture.  Nothing in 

the Series 2024B Bonds, the Bond Legislation, or the Indenture shall constitute a general 

obligation, debt, or bonded indebtedness of the Port Authority; neither the general resources of 

the Port Authority shall be required to be used, nor the general credit of the Port Authority pledged,  

for the performance of any duty under the Series 2024B Bonds, the Bond Legislation, or the 

Indenture; and, further, nothing therein gives the Holders of the Series 2024B Bonds, and they do 

not have, the right to have excises or taxes levied by this Legislative Authority, or by the State or 

the taxing authority of any other political subdivision, for the payment of principal of, redemption 

premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2024B Bonds, but the Series 2024B Bonds are payable 

from the Pledged Revenues and the funds established under the Indenture as provided herein 

and in the Indenture, and each Series 2024B Bond shall contain a statement to that effect; 

provided, however, that nothing in this Bond Legislation shall be deemed to prohibit the Port 

Authority, of its own volition, from using to the extent it is lawfully authorized to do so, any other 

resources or revenues for the fulfillment of any of the terms, conditions or obligations of the Series 

2024B Bonds, the Bond Legislation, or the Indenture. 

 

Covenants of Port Authority.  The Port Authority, by issuance of the Series 2024B Bonds, 

covenants and agrees with the Holders of the Series 2024B Bonds, that: 

 

Use of Proceeds.  The Port Authority will use, or cause to be used, the proceeds of the 

Series 2024B Bonds for the purposes set forth in Section 5 of this Resolution. 

 

Segregation of Funds.  The Port Authority will segregate, for accounting purposes, the 

Pledged Revenues and the funds established under the Indenture from all other revenues and 

funds of the Port Authority. 

 

Transcript of Proceedings. The Fiscal Officer, or other appropriate officer of the Port 

Authority, will furnish to the Original Purchaser and to the Trustee a true transcript of proceedings, 

certified by the Fiscal Officer or other officer, of all proceedings had with reference to the issuance 

of the Series 2024B Bonds together with such information from the Port Authority’s records as is 

necessary to determine the regularity and validity of such issuance. 

 

Further Actions and Delivery of Instruments.  The Port Authority will, at any and all times, 

cause to be done all such further acts and things and cause to be executed and delivered all such 

further instruments as may be necessary to carry out the purpose of the Series 2024B Bonds and 

this Bond Legislation or as may be required by the Act and will comply with all requirements of 

law applicable to the Series 2024B Bonds. 

 



  

59 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 3 
 

Observance and Performance of Agreements and Obligations.  The Port Authority will 

observe and perform all its agreements and obligations provided for by the Series 2024B Bonds, 

the Bond Legislation, the Indenture, and the Series 2024B Supplemental Indenture.  All of the 

obligations under the Bond Legislation, the Indenture, and the Series 2024B Supplemental 

Indenture are hereby established as duties specifically enjoined by law and resulting from an 

office, trust or station upon the Port Authority within the meaning of Ohio Revised Code Section 

2731.01. 

 

Series 2024B Supplemental Indenture, Series 2024B Agreement, Series 2024B Security 

Agreements, Collateral Agent Agreement, Disbursement Agreement, Series 2024B Collateral 

Assignment, and Bond Purchase Agreement.  The Executive and the Fiscal Officer are hereby 

authorized and directed, for and in the name of the Port Authority and on its behalf, to execute 

and deliver: (a) the Series 2024B Supplemental Indenture, to secure the payment of the Bond 

Service Charges on the Series 2024B Bonds; (b) the Series 2024B Agreement, to provide for the 

loan of the proceeds of the Series 2024B Bonds to the Contracting Party; (c) the Series 2024B 

Collateral Assignment, to provide Fifth Third Bank or any successor program reserve letter of 

credit bank, as issuer of its letter of credit to the Port Authority, rights to enforce payments to be 

made under the Series 2024B Agreement and the Series 2024B Security Agreements; (d) the 

Series 2024B Security Agreements; (e) if determined in the Certificate of Award to be necessary 

and appropriate, the Collateral Agent Agreement, (f) if determined in the Certificate of Award to 

be necessary and appropriate, the Disbursement Agreement, and (g) the Bond Purchase 

Agreement, to provide for the sale of the Series 2024B Bonds; provided, that all such documents 

shall be in substantially the form used in connection with the issuance of prior Series of Taxable 

Bonds, with such modifications as are necessary to conform to this Bond Legislation, after 

approval thereof by the Legal Officer.  The forms of the aforesaid documents are approved with 

such changes as are not inconsistent with this Bond Legislation, are not materially adverse to the 

Port Authority, are permitted by the Act, and shall be approved by the officers executing those 

documents.  The approval of such changes, and that such changes are not materially adverse to 

the Port Authority, are permitted by the Act, and are not inconsistent with this Bond Legislation 

shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution of those documents by those officials. 

Acquiring, Constructing, Developing, Equipping, Improving, and Installing the Series 2024B 

Project.  It is hereby determined by this Legislative Authority that acquiring, constructing, 

developing, equipping, improving, and installing the Series 2024B Project shall be undertaken by, 

or at the direction of, the Contracting Party pursuant to the Series 2024B Agreement, the 

Disbursement Agreement, and any other related documents, agreements, or instruments.  

Bond Counsel. The Legislative Authority approves of the appointment of the law firm of Bricker 

Graydon LLP to serve as Bond Counsel to the Port Authority with respect to the issuance of the 

Series 2024B Bonds.  The fees to be paid to such firm shall be subject to review and approval by 

the Executive and the Fiscal Officer and shall not exceed the fees customarily charged for such 

services. 

 

Other Actions and Documents.  The Executive and the Fiscal Officer are each authorized 

and directed to take such further actions and execute any certifications, financing statements,  



  

60 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 3 
 

assignments, agreements, instruments, intercreditor agreements, acknowledgements, 

guarantees, mortgages, and other documents that are necessary or appropriate to perfect the 

assignments contemplated in the Indenture and to consummate the transactions contemplated in 

this Bond Legislation and the agreements authorized hereby.   

 

Severability.  Each section of this Bond Legislation and each subdivision or paragraph of 

each section is hereby declared to be independent and the finding or holding of any section or  

 

any subdivision or paragraph of any section to be invalid or void shall not be deemed or held to 

affect the validity of any other section, subdivision, or paragraph of this Bond Legislation. 

 

Compliance with Open Meeting Law.  It is found and determined that all formal actions of 

this Legislative Authority concerning and relating to the passage of this Bond Legislation were 

taken in an open meeting of this Legislative Authority, and that all deliberations of this Legislative 

Authority and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open 

to the public, in compliance with the law. 

 

Effective Date.  This Bond Legislation shall be in full force and effect upon its passage. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Approved:  
       _________________________________ 

Yeas: Robin Whitney, Chair 
 

 Nays:       _________________________________ 
                 Thomas J. Winston, Secretary 

 

 

 



  

61 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (B) 1 
 

Consider Airport Joint Use Agreement with the  

State of Ohio and the United States of America 

The Airport Joint Use Agreement (AJUA) among the Port Authority, the State of 

Ohio and the United States of America sets forth the parameters for joint use of the airfield 

at the Eugene F. Kranz Toledo Express Airport and outlines the responsibilities of all 

parties. The current AJUA originally expired on September 30, 2022, but was extended 

for an additional year through September 30, 2023, pursuant to Amendment 1.  

The proposed ten (10) year agreement would commence on October 1, 2023, and 

expire on September 30, 2033.  It would require the State of Ohio to pay an amount of 

$192,150.00 for use of the airfield and its facilities. In addition, the State of Ohio, through 

the Ohio Air National Guard, would be required to provide Aircraft Rescue and Fire 

Fighting (ARFF) Services to the Airport on behalf of the Port Authority.   

The Planning & Operations Committee recommends the adoption of the following 

resolution authorizing the President to execute an Airport Joint Use Agreement with the 

State of Ohio and the United States of America at the Eugene F. Kranz Toledo Express 

Airport in substantially the form now on file with Counsel.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

62 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (B) 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.____ 

 

AUTHORIZING AIRPORT JOINT USE AGREEMENT WITH  

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA AND THE STATE OF OHIO 
 

WHEREAS, the Airport Joint Use Agreement (AJUA) among the Port Authority, the State 
of Ohio and the United States of America, which sets forth the parameters for joint use of the 
airfield at the Eugene F. Kranz Toledo Express Airport and outlines the responsibilities of all 
parties, expired on September 30, 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, the State of Ohio and the United States have proposed a new agreement to 

commence on October 1, 2023, and expire on September 30, 2033, in the amount of $192,150.00;     
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Toledo-Lucas 
County Port Authority: 
 

That the President, as Secretary and Fiscal Officer, be and hereby is authorized to execute 
an Airport Joint Use Agreement with the State of Ohio and United States of America in 
substantially the form on file with Counsel. 

 
That the President, as Secretary and Fiscal Officer, be and hereby is authorized to execute 

any other instruments necessary or appropriate, including amendments, in order to implement the 
terms of this resolution, provided such instruments are in a form approved by Counsel and 
approved in substance by the Airports Director.  

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
Approved:  
       _________________________________ 

Yeas: Robin Whitney, Chair 
 

 Nays:       _________________________________ 
                 Thomas J. Winston, Secretary 

 

 



  

63 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (B) 2 
 

Consider Hangar Facility Improvements at Eugene F.  

Kranz Toledo Express Airport (Toledo Jet Center) 
 

Since 2010, Toledo Jet Center has leased a 36,456 sq. ft. hangar at Eugene F. 

Kranz Toledo Express Airport for the purpose of aircraft maintenance and repair.  

Although Toledo Jet Center’s business has grown over the years, both in Toledo and 

Florida, the industry has evolved and its existing and potential customers are utilizing 

larger aircraft than the hangar doors can currently accommodate. In an effort to capitalize 

on these new business opportunities in Toledo and meet market demands, a new hangar 

door is necessary to increase the door width from 69 ft. to 80 ft. and the door height by 2 

ft.   

The cost of this improvement is approximately $750,000, which the Port Authority 

would competitively bid through its standard bid process. In exchange for the Port 

Authority’s investment into the facility, Toledo Jet Center has agreed to exercise its 

second option term of the lease agreement to extend their tenancy through December 

31, 2039, and to increase the lease rate from $3.12 to $4.50 per sq. ft., with an annual 

fixed increase of 3% for the lease term. In addition, Toledo Jet would pay for any project 

costs above $750,000. 

The Planning & Operations Committee recommends adoption of the following 

resolution to authorize the appropriation of $750,000 from Airport Reserves, to authorize 

the President to award a contract for the design and construction of the improvements to 

the lowest responsible and responsive bidder, and to authorize an amendment to the 

Lease Agreement with Toledo Jet Center as described above.  

 

 



  

64 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (B) 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

 

AUTHORIZING HANGAR FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS AT EUGENE F. KRANZ 

TOLEDO EXPRESS AIRPORT (TOLEDO JET CENTER) 

WHEREAS, since 2010, Toledo Jet Center, LLC has leased a 36,456 sq. ft. hangar at 
Eugene F. Kranz Toledo Express Airport for the purpose of maintenance and repair; and  

 
WHEREAS, Toledo Jet Center’s business has grown over the years and its existing and 

potential customers are utilizing larger aircraft than the hangar doors can currently accommodate, 
and a new hangar door is necessary to capitalize on these business opportunities and meet 
market demand (the “Project”); and  

 
 WHEREAS, the cost of the facility improvement is approximately $750,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, in exchange for the Port Authority’s investment into the facility, Toledo Jet 

Center has agreed to exercise its second option term to extend its tenancy through December 
31, 2039, and to increase its lease rate, as well as to directly fund any improvement costs above 
$750,000;  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Toledo-Lucas 
County Port Authority: 
 

That there be and hereby is appropriated from the Airport Reserve Fund the sum of 
$750,000 to pay the costs of the Project. 

 
That the President, as Secretary and Fiscal Officer, be and hereby is authorized to execute 

an agreement with the lowest responsive and responsible bidders for the design and construction 
of the Project, as determined by the President in his discretion, and which agreements shall 
include such terms and conditions as the President deems necessary and appropriate. 

 
That the President, as Secretary and Fiscal Officer, be and hereby is authorized to execute 

an amendment to the Lease Agreement dated January 1, 2010, between the Port Authority and 
Toledo Jet Center, LLC with the following terms: 

 

• Term: second option to be exercised, extending the term through December 31, 2039 

• Rent: effective January 1, 2024, the rent will be increased from $3.12 to $4.50 per 
square foot, which rent amount shall be annually increased by three percent (3%) each 
January 1 thereafter 

• Other: the agreement shall include such other terms and conditions as the President 
deems necessary or appropriate. 

 
That Toledo Jet Center, LLC shall pay all Project costs that exceed $750,000. 

 
That the President, as Secretary and Fiscal Officer, be and hereby is authorized to execute 

any other instruments necessary or appropriate, including amendments and change orders, in 
order to implement the terms of this resolution, provided such instruments are in a form approved  
 
 
 



  

65 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (B) 2 
 

by Counsel and approved in substance by the Vice President of Business Development.   
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

Approved:  
       _________________________________ 

Yeas: Robin Whitney, Chair 
 

 Nays:       _________________________________ 
                 Thomas J. Winston, Secretary 
 



  

66 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (C) 1 
 

Consider Community Economic Development  

Initiative Grant for The Salvation Army  
 

 The Port Authority Board of Directors appropriated $350,000 of proceeds from the 

property tax levy for the purpose of providing funds to economic development projects 

undertaken by eligible, neighborhood-based organizations in Lucas County. An 

application has been submitted by The Salvation Army, a 501(c)(3) corporation, for a 

grant in the amount of $20,000, to assist with building improvements and equipment at 

their building located at 620 N. Erie St. The grant funds will be used to upgrade the 

entrance to accommodate for handicapped accessibility and to ensure the safety of all 

visitors who utilize the services provided at this location every day. The specific upgrades 

will include the installation of handicapped door actuators, an electrical system upgrade 

to operate the entry doors, as well as concrete leveling, LED lighting, flooring, and ceiling 

tiles.  

The Government, Community and Human Relations Committee recommends 

adoption of the following resolution authorizing a grant for up to $20,000 from previously 

appropriated Property Tax funds for eligible costs. 

 



  

67 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (C) 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.___ 

AUTHORIZING COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE  

GRANT TO THE SALVATION ARMY 

 

WHEREAS, the Port Authority Board of Directors appropriated $350,000 of proceeds from 
the property tax levy for the purpose of providing funds to economic development projects 
undertaken by eligible, neighborhood-based organizations in Lucas County; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Salvation Army, a 501(c)(3) corporation, has applied for a grant in the 

amount of $20,000 to assist with building improvements and equipment at their building located 
at 620 N. Erie Street, Toledo, Ohio, to improve the handicapped accessibility and the safety of 
visitors; and 

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Toledo-Lucas 
County Port Authority:       

 
That the President as Secretary and Fiscal Officer be and hereby is authorized to execute 

an agreement with The Salvation Army for a grant of up to $20,000 to be used for building 
improvements and equipment at 620 N. Erie Street, Toledo, Ohio, which agreement shall include 
such terms and conditions as the President deems necessary or appropriate. 

 
 That the President as Secretary and Fiscal Officer be and hereby is authorized to execute 

any other instruments necessary or appropriate, including amendments, in order to implement the 
terms of this resolution, provided such instruments are in a form approved by Counsel and 
approved in substance by the Human Resources & Legal Administrator.  

 
That the grant of up to $20,000 shall be paid from previously appropriated Property Tax 

funds for eligible costs.                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
Approved:  
       _________________________________ 

Yeas: Robin Whitney, Chair 
 

 Nays:       _________________________________ 
                 Thomas J. Winston, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 



  

68 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (C) 1a 
 

Exhibit D 

 
 



  

69 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (C) 1a 
 

 
 
 
 
 



  

70 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (C) 1a 
 

 
 
 
 



  

71 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (C) 1a 
 

 

 

 

 

 



  

72 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (C) 1a 
 



  

73 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (C) 2 
 

Consider Community Economic Development Initiative  

Grant for Beach House, Inc. dba Leading Families Home  

 The Port Authority Board of Directors appropriated $350,000 of proceeds from the 

property tax levy for the purpose of providing funds to economic development projects 

undertaken by eligible, neighborhood-based organizations in Lucas County. An 

application has been submitted by Beach House, a 501(c)(3) corporation, for a grant in 

the amount of $16,340 to assist with building improvements and equipment at the Beach 

House Family Shelter located at 915 N. Erie St. The grant funds will be used for 

replacement of the concrete steps at the front entrance, restoration of the front door and 

frame, and upgrade of the security system. The building has been vacant due to safety 

concerns created by the needed repairs.  Upon completion of the project, this location will 

provide a safe environment for up to 23 homeless individuals, including children, and 

create an additional three (3) to six (6) jobs.    

The Government, Community and Human Relations Committee recommends 

adoption of the following resolution authorizing a grant for up to $16,340 from previously 

appropriated Property Tax funds for eligible costs. 



  

74 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (C) 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

 

AUTHORIZING COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE  

GRANT TO BEACH HOUSE, INC. dba LEADING FAMILIES HOME 

 

WHEREAS, the Port Authority Board of Directors appropriated $350,000 of proceeds from 
the property tax levy for the purpose of providing funds to economic development projects 
undertaken by eligible, neighborhood-based organizations in Lucas County; and 

 
WHEREAS, Beach House, Inc. dba Leading Families Home, a 501(c)(3) corporation, has 

applied for a grant in the amount of $16,340 to assist with building improvements and equipment 
at their building located at 915 N. Erie Street, Toledo, Ohio, to replace the concrete steps at the 
front entrance, restore the front door and frame, and upgrade the security system; and 

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Toledo-Lucas 
County Port Authority:       

 
That the President as Secretary and Fiscal Officer be and hereby is authorized to execute 

an agreement with Beach House, Inc. dba Leading Families Home for a grant of up to $16,340 to 
be used for building improvements and equipment at 915 N. Erie Street, Toledo, Ohio, which 
agreement shall include such terms and conditions as the President deems necessary or 
appropriate. 

 
 That the President as Secretary and Fiscal Officer be and hereby is authorized to execute 

any other instruments necessary or appropriate, including amendments, in order to implement the 
terms of this resolution, provided such instruments are in a form approved by Counsel and 
approved in substance by the Human Resources & Legal Administrator.  

 
That the grant of up to $16,340 shall be paid from previously appropriated Property Tax 

funds for eligible costs.                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
Approved:  
       _________________________________ 

Yeas: Robin Whitney, Chair 
 

 Nays:       _________________________________ 
                 Thomas J. Winston, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

75 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (C) 2a 
 

Exhibit E 

 



  

76 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (C) 2a 
 

 

 



  

77 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (C) 2a 
 

 

 



  

78 
 

March 28, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (C) 2a 
 

 

 


